LAFCO

- Hameda 1.ocal Asencv Formation Commission

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING AND AGENDA
ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

MONDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2025
2:00 P.M.

Ralph Johnson, Chair — John Marchand Vice Chair — Nate Miley — David Haubert — Jack Balch — Mariellen Faria — Sblend Sblendorio
Lena Tam, Alternate — Sherry Hu, Alternate — Peter Rosen, Alternate — Bob Woerner, Alternate

In Person:
Council Chamber
Dublin City Hall
100 Civic Plaza
Dublin, CA 94568

If you need assistance before the meeting, please contact Executive Officer, Rachel Jones at:
rachel.jones@acgov.org

1. 2:00 P.M. — Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll Call

3. Public Comment: Anyone from the audience may address the Commission on any matter not listed on
the agenda and within the jurisdiction of Alameda LAFCO. The Commission cannot act upon matters
not appearing on the agenda. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes.

4. Consent Items:
a. Resolution Authorizing Participation in SDRMA Health Benefits Program
b. SDRMA Workers’ Compensation and General Liability Coverage

5. Delegation of Limited Transition Plan Authority to Ad Hoc Selection Committee — (Business)

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) is asked to delegate limited
authority to the Ad Hoc Selection Committee (Chair Johnson, Commissioners Faria and Woerner)
to make time-sensitive decisions necessary to implement LAFCO’s transition to administrative and
fiscal independence by January 1, 2026. The scope mirrors actions previously discussed by the
Commission (e.g., selection of health benefits and retirement platforms, payroll and HR
implementation steps, and execution of standard-form agreements/MOUs), but consolidates
decision-making between regular meetings to avoid multiple special meetings.


mailto:rachel.jones@acgov.org

ALAMEDA LAFCO
October 20, 2025 Special Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 3

LAFCO Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.

Adjournment of Regular Meeting

Next Meetings of the Commission

Regular Meeting
Thursday, November 13, 2025 at 2:00 p.m., Dublin City Hall, Council Chamber




ALAMEDA LAFCO
October 20, 2025 Special Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 3

DISCLOSURE OF BUSINESS OR CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS TO COMMISSIONERSRE

Government Code Section 84308 requires that a Commissioner (regular or alternate) disqualify herself or himself and not participate
ina proceeding involving an "entitlement for use" application if, within the last twelve months, the Commissioner has received $250 or
morein business or campaign contributions from an applicant, an agent of an applicant, or any financially interested person who
actively supports or opposes a decision on the matter. A LAFCo decision approving a proposal (e.g., for an annexation) will often be an
"entitlement for use" within the meaning of Section 84308. Sphere of Influence determinations are exempt under Government Code Section
84308.

If you are an applicant or an agent of an applicant on such a matter to be heard by the Commission and if you have made business or
campaigncontributions totaling $250 or more to any Commissioner in the past twelve months, Section 84308(d) requires that you disclose
that fact for the official record of the proceeding. The disclosure of any such contribution (including the amount of the contribution and the
name of the recipient Commissioner) must be made either: 1) In writing and delivered to the Secretary of the Commission prior to the hearing
on the matter,or 2) By oral declaration made at the time the hearing on the matter is opened. Contribution disclosure forms are available at
the meeting for anyone who prefers to disclose contributions in writing.

Pursuant to GC Section 84308, if you wish to participate in the above proceedings, you or your agent are prohibited from making a campaign
contribution of $250 or more to any Commissioner. This prohibition begins on the date you begin to actively support or oppose an application
before LAFCO and continues until 3 months after a final decision is rendered by LAFCO. If you or your agent have made a contribution
of $250 or more to any Commissioner during the 12 months preceding the decision, in the proceeding that Commissioner must disqualify
himself or herself from the decision. However, disqualification is not required if the Commissioner returns that campaign contribution within
30 daysof learning both about the contribution and the fact that you are a participant in the proceedings. Separately, any person with a
disability underthe Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) may receive a copy of the agenda or a copy of all the documents constituting the
agenda packet for a meeting upon request. Any person with a disability covered under the ADA may also request a disability-related
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in a public meeting. Please contact the LAFCO
office at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting for any requested arrangements or accommodations.

Alameda LAFCO Administrative Office
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110
Hayward, CA 94544

T:510.670.6267

W: alamedalafco.org



8 LAFCO

/484%64[@ Local Agency Formation Commission

AGENDA REPORT
October 20, 2025
Item No. 4a
TO: Alameda Commissioners
FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution Authorizing Participation in SDRMA’s Health Benefits
Program

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) is asked to adopt a resolution
approving the form of, and authorizing LAFCO’s participation in the Special District Risk
Management Authority (SDRMA) Health Benefits Program. Although the Commission
previously authorized staff to enter into necessary agreements to support LAFCO’s transition to
independence, legal counsel has advised formal adoption of this resolution is required to
implement enrollment. Staff recommends approval.

Background

As part of LAFCQO’s transition to administrative and fiscal independence effective January 1, 2026, the
Commission directed staff to secure health and welfare benefits for LAFCO employees separate from
the County of Alameda. SDRMA offers a pooled health benefits program tailored to special districts,
with multiple medical, dental, vision, life, disability, and EAP options.

To finalize enrollment, SDRMA requires a governing body resolution authorizing participation
(Attachment 1).

Discussion

Adoption of the resolution will formally authorize LAFCO to do the following:

= Authorize LAFCO’s participation in the SDRMA Health Benefits Program,;

= Designate the Executive Officer as the authorized representative to execute related
enrollment documents and make ongoing administrative elections; and

= Align benefits implementation with LAFCO’s independence timeline.

Administrative Office Nate Miley, Regular Jack Balch, Regular Ralph Johnson, Chair Sblend Sblendorio, Regular

David Haubert, Regular John Marchand, Regular  Mariellen Faria, Regular Bob Woerner, Alternate

Lena Tam, Alternate Sherry Hu Peter Rosen, Alternate



Alameda LAFCO
October 20, 2025 Meeting
Agenda Item No. 4a

Financing

Premium costs will be paid from Alameda LAFCO’s adopted FY 25-26 budget under employee
benefits. Final costs will depend on plan selections and enrollment, but are within the amounts
previously contemplated for the independence transition costs.

Alternatives for Action

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:

Alternative One (Recommended):
Adopt the resolution as shown in Attachment 1 authorizing participation in the SDRMA Health
Benefits Program and designating the Executive Officer to execute necessary enrollment actions.

Alternative Two:

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff for additional
information as needed.

Recommendation

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.

Procedures

This item has been placed on Alameda LAFCO’s agenda as part of the consent calendar. A
successful motion to approve the consent calendar will include taking affirmative action on the

staff reccommendation as provided unless otherwise specified by the Commission.

Respectfully,

Rachel Jones
Executive Officer

Attachment:
1. SDRMA Resolution

2|Page



Attachment 1

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE OF THE (GOVERNING BODY) OF Alameda Local Agency
Formation Commission APPROVING THE FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND AUTHORIZING
PARTICIPATION IN THE SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY’S

HEALTH BENEFITS PROGRAM

WHEREAS, Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission, a public agency duly organized and
existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the “ENTITY”), has determined
that it is in the best interest and to the advantage of the ENTITY to participate in the Health
Benefits Program offered by Special District Risk Management Authority (the “Authority”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority was formed in 1986 in accordance with the provisions of California
Government Code 6500 et seq., for the purpose of providing risk financing, risk management
programs and other coverage protection programs; and

WHEREAS, participation in Authority programs requires the ENTITY to execute and enter into a
Memorandum of Understanding which states the purpose and participation requirements for the
Health Benefits Program; and

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the laws of the State of California to exist,
to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with the
consummation of the transactions authorized hereby do exist, have happened and have been
performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, and the ENTITY is now
duly authorized and empowered, pursuant to each and every requirement of law, to
consummate such transactions for the purpose, in the manner and upon the terms herein
provided.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE ENTITY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Findings. The ENTITY’s Governing Body hereby specifically finds and determines that
the actions authorized hereby relate to the public affairs of the ENTITY.

Section 2. Memorandum of Understanding. The Memorandum of Understanding, to be executed
and entered into by and between the ENTITY and the Authority, in the form presented at this
meeting and on file with the ENTITY’s Secretary, is hereby approved. The ENTITY’s Governing
Body and/or Authorized Officers (“The Authorized Officers”) are hereby authorized and directed,
for and in the name and on behalf of the ENTITY, to execute and deliver to the Authority the
Memorandum of Understanding.

Section 3. Program Participation. The ENTITY’s Governing Body approves participating in the
Special District Risk Management Authority’s Health Benefits Program.




Section 4. Severability. If any provision of this resolution or the application thereof to any person
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of
the resolution which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this
end the provisions of this resolution are severable.

Section 5. Other Actions. The Authorized Officers of the ENTITY are each hereby authorized and
directed to execute and deliver any and all documents which are necessary in order to
consummate the transactions authorized hereby and all such actions heretofore taken by such
officers are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.

Section 6. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20tth day of October, 2025, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

APPROVED: ATTEST:

Ralph Johnson Rachel Jones
Chair Executive Officer

APPROVED TO FORM:

Andrew Massey
Legal Counsel



8 LAFCO

/484%64[@ Local Agency Formation Commission

AGENDA REPORT
October 20, 2025
Item No. 4b
TO: Alameda Commissioners
FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer

SUBJECT: SDRMA Workers’ Compensation and General Liability Coverage

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) is asked to attached resolutions
authorizing participation in the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) for
workers’ compensation and general liability coverage, effective January 1, 2026.

Background

As part of LAFCO’s transition to becoming an independent employer, the Commission must establish
its own coverage for workers’ compensation and general liability. These programs are currently
administered through the County’s risk management system and will conclude as the County winds
down its administrative services to LAFCO by the end of 2025.

SDRMA is a Joint Powers Authority that provides pooled coverage and risk management services to
over 500 local government agencies across California. It is endorsed by the California Special Districts
Association (CSDA), of which Alameda LAFCO is now a member. Staff has worked with SDRMA
representatives to review coverage options and confirm eligibility under the agency’s transition
timeline.

Discussion

To activate coverage, SDRMA requires Commission adoption of its standard membership resolutions
and completion of the associated application forms. These documents authorize participation in the
SDRMA risk pool, designate the Executive Officer as the agency representative, and allow SDRMA
to submit the necessary paperwork to the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) for issuance of a
Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure.

The SDRMA proposal includes both workers’ compensation and general liability coverage, with
effective dates and premiums to be finalized once membership is approved. All signed membership
materials must be returned to SDRMA at least three business days prior to the desired coverage start
date.

Administrative Office Nate Miley, Regular Jack Balch, Regular Ralph Johnson, Chair Sblend Sblendorio, Regular

David Haubert, Regular John Marchand, Regular  Mariellen Faria, Regular Bob Woerner, Alternate

Lena Tam, Alternate Sherry Hu Peter Rosen, Alternate



Alameda LAFCO
October 20, 2025 Meeting
Agenda Item No. 4a

Adoption of these resolutions ensures LAFCO maintains continuous coverage as it transitions from
County-administered programs to independent operations.

Financing

Premium costs are anticipated to be comparable to current County charges for similar coverages. Final
rates will be determined by SDRMA underwriting and adjusted annually based on payroll and risk
exposure.

Alternatives for Action

The following alternatives are available to the Commission:

Alternative One (Recommended):

Adopt the attached resolutionsauthorizing participation in the SDRMA workers’ compensation
and general liability coverage and designating the Executive Officer to execute necessary
agreements.

Alternative Two:
Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff for additional

information as needed.

Recommendation

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.

Procedures

This item has been placed on Alameda LAFCO’s agenda as part of the consent calendar. A

successful motion to approve the consent calendar will include taking affirmative action on the
staff reccommendation as provided unless otherwise specified by the Commission.

Respectfully,

Rachel Jones
Executive Officer

Attachment:
1. SDRMA Proposal Letter and Membership Documents
2. SDRMA Membership Resolutions

2|Page



Attachment 1

1112 I Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95814-2865

* O 916-231-4141 » 800-537-7790
Fax 916-231-4111

SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY MGXImIZ/ng PrOl’ECtlon MII?/FHIZIng RISK.

October 16, 2025

Rachel Jones

Executive Officer

Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission
224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110

Hayward, CA 94544

Dear Rachel Jones,

Thank you for the opportunity to provide Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission with this 2025-26
Property/Liability and Workers’ Compensation Program quotation. Established in 1986, the Special District Risk
Management Authority has a proven reputation for competitive rates, actuarially based fiscal management, and sound
underwriting practices. Our goal is to serve as an extension of your agency’s staff and provide the best value through
proactive loss prevention, effective claims cost containment and enhanced member services. Our partnerships with
California Special District Association (CSDA), the CSDA Finance Corporation, and the Special District Leadership
Foundation provide our members access to valuable services, resources, education and training opportunities.

Valid for sixty (60) days from the date of this letter, the following quotation represents twelve (12) months of coverage
and is subject to verification and final underwriting review. Coverage bound mid-year will be prorated based on
effective dates. Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission’s quotation is as follows:

PROPERTY/LIABILITY PROGRAM QUOTATION
Coverage Limits: $2.5 Million - July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026* $7,068.47
Includes a 5% Multi-Program Discount, based on net package contribution**

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM MULTI-PROGRAM DISCOUNT

Coverage: July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026* $2,015.32
Total Estimated Payroll: $353,565

Includes a 5% Multi-Program Discount, based on an experience modification of 100%**

*Please refer to the attached list for detailed coverage limits and deductibles.

**Must participate in both programs in order to receive discount. If only one quotation is accepted, the
discount will be removed.

California Special Districts Association CSDA Finance Corporation

11121 Street, Suite 200 11121 Street, Suite 200

Sacramento, California 95814-2865 Sacramento, California 95814-2865 sd rma.org

877-924-CSDA (2732) * Fax 916-442-7889 877-924-CSDA (2732) * Fax 916-442-7889 California Special Districts Alliance partner

10



/N
SDRMA

SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Please review the following requirements and conditions:

e Adoption of a Resolution by the Agency Board of Directors approving the form and authorizing the Execution of the
Sixth Amended Joint Powers Agreement and agreeing to membership in the SDRMA Property/Liability and Workers’
Compensation Program for an initial 3-program year commitment.

e Execution and delivery of the Sixth Amended Joint Powers Agreement of the Special District Risk Management
Authority.

e Completion of the Alliant Crime Policy application.

e The Adoption of the Resolution and Approval of the State Application for a Certificate to Self-Insure by the Agency.

¢ The Completion of the State Application for a Certificate to Self-Insure by the Agency.

e Approval by SDRMA’s Board of Directors of Agency’s membership in the Property/Liability and Workers’
Compensation Program.

e Initial three-program year member enrollment required. Upon meeting the initial three-program year commitment,
a member may withdraw by submitting a 90-day (April 1) intent to withdraw letter before the annual renewal.

¢ Maintaining annual Membership in California Special Districts Association is required and separate from this
guotation.

¢ Special District Risk Management Authority’s Credit Incentive Program (CIP) awards up to 15% off the annual
contribution for completion of approved risk management and training programs. Members can reduce future
contributions each year by earning CIP points or not experiencing any paid claims.

Upon receipt of all membership documents, SDRMA will issue the policy and forward pro-rated invoices for the
annualized Property/Liability and Workers' Compensation Program contributions.

We look forward to Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission’s participation in the SDRMA Property/Liability and
Workers’” Compensation Program. Should you have any questions, or if we can provide any additional information,
please do not hesitate to contact us at 800.537.7790. All necessary membership documents will be sent to you upon
notification of your agency’s decision to proceed with membership in the program.

Sincerely,
Special District Risk Management Authority

Debbie Yokota, CPCU - Interim Chief Executive Officer




Special District Risk Management Authority
Proposed Lines of Coverage for Program Year 2025-26

Line of Coverage

Property
Property

Boiler & Machinery
Flood (excluding A and V)
Flood (A and V)

Pollution

Catastrophic Loss

General Liability
Bodily Injury

Property Damage

Public Officials Personal

Employment Benefits

Employee/Public Officials E & O

Employment Practices Liability
Employee/Public Officials Dishonesty (Crime)

Auto Liability (includes non-owned auto)
Auto Bodily Injury

Auto Property Damage
Non-Owned Auto Bodily Injury
Non-Owned Auto Property Damage
Uninsured Motorist

Workers' Compensation
Employers Liability

Workers' Compensation

* Special Deductibles/Limits

Item Count Total Insured Value (TIV)

1 $15,000.00

Deductible

$1,000
$1,000
$500,000
$500,000
$250,000
$500,000

$0
$500
$500
$0

$0

$0
$2,500

$0
$1,000
$0
$1,000
$0

$0
$0

$1,2
$2

$

$

$1,2

A\
SDRMA

Limit

50,000,000
00,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
$2,000,000
50,000,000

$2,500,000
$2,500,000

$500,000
$2,500,000
$2,500,000
$2,500,000
$1,000,000

$2,500,000
$2,500,000
$2,500,000
$2,500,000
$1,000,000

$5,000,000
Statutory



N
Workers' Compensation Program Proposal SDRMA
Program Year 2025-26

Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission Proposal Date: 02/12/2025

224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 Proposal Number: 202526-1

H d California, 94544 . .
ayward mallfornia Anticipated Bind Date: 01/01/2026

Class Classification Reported Manual Rate Annual
Code Description Payroll per $100 Contribution

8810 Clerical/Office Employees $353,565 $0.60 $2,121.39

** Indicates per capita rate class code

Total Estimated Annual Contribution Based on Manual Rates $2,121.39
Contribution as Adjusted by the Experience Modification Factor of 100.00% 2,121.39

Less: 5% Multi-Program Discount -106.07
Net Estimated Annual Contribution Amount $2,015.32
Total Estimated Annual Contribution Amount $2,015.32

13



SIXTH AMENDED
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

RELATING TO THE

SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Adopted August 1, 1986

1% Amended February 5, 1988

2" Amended  March 31, 1990

3" Amended July 1, 1993

4™ Amended February 9, 1998
5™ Amended and Restated

- Approved March 24, 2003

- Effective July 1, 2003

6th Amended October 2, 2007



JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT - TABLE OF CONTENTS

ATTICIE 1. DETINITIONS ...eiiiiiiieitieite ettt bbbt e s b e e be e e e sbe et e eneenns 2
ATTICIE 2. PUIDOSES ....eteete ettt sttt e et e et e te et e e s e s aeeseeereesteeneeeneesseesteaneesseanneaneennean 3
Article 3. Parties t0 AQIEEIMENT.........cui ittt sttt bt sre e b e sneenns 4
Article 4. Term Of AQIEEIMENT.........iiiecieie ettt e s este e e s reesteeneesneennean 4
Article 5. Creation Of AUTNOTITY ........coo it bbb ns 4
Article 6. POWEIS OF AULNOTILY .....c.viiieiicie et sne e 4
Article 7. B0Ard OF DIFECIOIS ....cuiiiiiieiieie sttt b e nbe et sne e 6
Article 8. Compliance With the BroOWN ACE ........c.ooiiiiiiie e 6
Article 9. Powers Of the Board Of DIFECIOIS ........c.coiiiieiiiiieiiee et 6
Article 10. Officers Of the AULNOTILY.......ccooiiii e 8
Article 11. Provision fOr BYIAWS .........coioiiiiiiiiiie e e 8
N g T L= T B | TSy T T | PSSR 8
ATrtICIe 13, COVEIagE PrOGIAMS. . .ocuiiiiieiieiestiesteete sttt sttt e s be et st e sbeesbeeseesbeebeaneesneenes 9
Article 14. Implementation of the Programs...........cccvieiiiiiiie e 9
Article 15. ACCOUNES AN RECOIS ......oviiiiiiieiiiiie sttt 9
Article 16. Services Provided by the AUthOIILY ........cccoiiiiiiii e 10
Avrticle 17. Responsibilities Of MEMDEIS ........ooiiiiiiic s 10
ATTICIE 18, NEW IMEIMDEIS. ...ttt bbbttt bbb 11
AIICIE 19, WITNAIAWAL........eiiiiiii ettt sb et ns 11
Article 20. Involuntary TerMINALION ........c.ciiveiiiieiiiece e ra e re e e sneenee s 12
Article 21. Effect of Withdrawal or Involuntary Termination............cccceeveereienienenieneene e 13
Article 22. Termination and Distribution; ASSIGNMENT ...........ccceiiieiieieiiereere e 13
ATICIE 23, ENFOICEMENT.. ...ttt sttt ettt e et e ae et e nneenns 14
Article 24. Nonliability of Directors, Officers and EMPIOYEES .........cccevverieriieiieeieiie e 14
Acrticle 25. Provisions Relating to CSDA ..ot 14
ATTICIE 26, INOTICES ...ttt ettt et e st e e st e s beete e st e s teente e st e sseeaeeneesseenneenteeneenres 15
ATTICIE 27, AMENUMENT. ..ottt bbbt b e s et e b e b sbesbenbenreene e 15
Article 28. Prohibition AgainSt ASSINMENT..........coiiiiiiiiieieere e 15
Article 29. AQreemMent COMPIELE .........cviiiiiecie et e e sneens 15
ATTICIE 30, COUNTEIPAITS ...ttt bbbttt ettt bbb 15
ATtICle 3L, CalifOrNia LAW ...c.coviiiiieiicieseee ettt bbbttt besne s e 15
ATTICIE 32, SEVEIADTIITY ....ocviee bbbt 15
ATTICIE 33, EFFECHIVE DALE ..o bbbttt ns 15
SDRMA 6™ Amended JPA Effective October 2, 2007

15



SIXTH AMENDED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT
RELATING TO THE
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

THIS SIXTH AMENDED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is
made and entered into by and among the public agencies (the “Members”) organized and
existing under the laws of the State of California, which are signatories to this Agreement.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. (the “Act”) provides that
two or more public agencies may by agreement jointly exercise any power common to the
contracting parties; and

WHEREAS, California Labor Code Section 3700(c) permits pooling by public agencies
of self insurance for Workers” Compensation liability; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.4 provides that a local public
entity may self-insure, purchase insurance through an authorized carrier, purchase insurance
through a surplus line broker, or any combination of these; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.8 provides that two or more local
entities may, by a joint powers agreement, provide insurance for any purpose by any one or more
of the methods specified in Government Code Section 990.4; and

WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement desire to join together for the purposes set
forth in Article 2 hereof, including establishing pools for self-insured losses and purchasing
Excess or Re-Insurance and administrative services in connection with joint protection programs
(the “Programs”) for members of the California Special Districts Association (“CSDA”); and

WHEREAS, it appears economically feasible and practical for the parties to this
Agreement to do so; and

WHEREAS, the Members have previously executed that certain Fifth Amended and
Restated Joint Powers Agreement (the “Original JPA”), which Original JPA the Members desire
to amend and restate by this Agreement; provided that such amendment and restatement shall not
affect the existence of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, CSDA exists to assist and promote special districts, and has been
responsible for the original creation of the Special District Risk Management Authority
(“Authority”) and Special District Workers Compensation Authority (“SDWCA?”), and
determined the consolidation of SDWCA and the Authority on July 1, 2003 was in the best
interests of special districts and other public agencies throughout the State.

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 1 Effective October 2, 2007
16



NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of all of the mutual benefits, covenants
and agreements contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Article 1. Definitions. The following definitions shall apply to the provisions of this
agreement:

“Act” means Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5,
Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code, as amended or supplemented.

“Alliance Executive Council” means the council organized pursuant to the MOU.

“Assessment” means an additional amount, in addition to the Member’s or Former
Member’s original contribution, which the Board of Directors determines in accordance herewith
and/or with the Bylaws that a Member or Former Member owes on account of its participation in
a Program for a given Program year.

“Authority” shall mean the Special District Risk Management Authority created by the
original version of this Agreement.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” shall mean the governing body of the Authority.

“Bylaws” means the Bylaws of the Authority adopted by the Board of Directors, as they
may be amended from time to time.

“Chief Executive Officer” shall mean that employee of the Authority who is so appointed
by the Board of Directors.

“Claim” shall mean a demand made by or against a Member or Former Member which is
or may be covered by one of the Programs approved by the Board of Directors.

“Contribution” means the amount determined by the Board of Directors to be the
appropriate sum which a Member should pay at the commencement of or during the Program
Year in exchange for the benefits provided by the Program.

“Coverage Documents” shall mean the Declarations, Memorandum of Coverages,
Coverage Agreements, Endorsements, Policies of Insurance or any other documents that provide
the terms, conditions, limits and exclusions of coverage afforded by a Program.

“CSDA” means the California Special Districts Association.

“District” shall mean a special district, public agency or public entity within the State of
California which is both a Member of the CSDA and a signatory to this Agreement.

“Duly Constituted Board Meeting” shall mean any Board of Directors meeting noticed
and held in the required manner and at which a Quorum was determined to be present at the
beginning of the meeting.

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 2 Effective October 2, 2007
17



“Estimated Contribution” means the amount which the Board of Directors estimates will
be the appropriate contribution for a Member’s participation in a Program for a Program Year.

“Excess or Re-Insurance” shall mean that insurance which may be purchased on behalf of
the Authority and/or the Members to protect the funds of the Members or Former Members
against catastrophic losses or an unusual frequency of losses during a single year in excess of the
self-insurance retention maintained by the Authority.

“Fiscal Year” shall mean that period of twelve months which is established as the fiscal
year of the Authority.

“Former Member” shall mean a District which was a signatory to the Agreement but
which has withdrawn from, or been involuntarily terminated from participating in, the Authority.

“Joint Protection Program” means a Program offered by the Authority, separate and
distinct from other Programs, wherein Members will jointly pool their losses and claims, jointly
purchase Excess or Re-Insurance and administrative and other services, including claims
adjusting, data processing, risk management consulting, loss prevention, legal and related
services.

“Member” shall mean a signatory to this Agreement, which is qualified as a Member
under the provisions of this Agreement and the Bylaws.

“MOU” means the Memorandum of Understanding - Alliance Executive Council, dated
as of September 20, 2001, among the Authority, CSDA, the CSDA Finance Corporation and
SDWCA.

“Program” or “Programs” means the specific type of protection plan as set forth in the
terms, conditions and exclusions of the Coverage Documents for self-insured losses, and the
purchasing of Excess or Re-Insurance and administrative services.

“Program Year” shall mean a period of time, usually 12 months, determined by the Board
of Directors, in which a Program is in effect.

“Retained Earnings,” as used herein, shall mean an equity account reflecting the
accumulated earnings of a Joint Protection Program.

“SDWCA” means the Special Districts Workers Compensation Authority, and its
SUCCessors or assigns.

Article 2. Purposes. This Agreement is entered into by the Members pursuant to the
provisions of California Government Code section 990, 990.4, 990.8 and 6500 et seq. in order to
provide, subject to the provisions of the Coverage Documents, economical public liability and
workers’ compensation coverage, or coverage for other risks which the Board of Directors may
determine.

Additional purposes are to reduce the amount and frequency of losses, and to decrease
the cost incurred by Members in the handling and litigation of claims. These purposes shall be

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 3 Effective October 2, 2007
18



accomplished through the exercise of the powers of such Members jointly in the creation of a
separate entity, the Special District Risk Management Authority (the “Authority”), to establish
and administer Programs as set forth herein and in the Bylaws.

It is also the purpose of this Agreement to provide, to the extent permitted by law, for the
inclusion, at a subsequent date, and subject to approval by the Board of Directors, of such
additional Members organized and existing under the laws of the State of California as may
desire to become parties to the Agreement and Members of the Authority.

Article 3. Parties to Agreement. Each party to this Agreement certifies that it intends
to and does contract with all other parties who are signatories to this Agreement and, in addition,
with such other parties as may later be added as parties to and signatories of this Agreement
pursuant to Article 18. Each party to this Agreement also certifies that the withdrawal from or
cancellation of membership by any Member, pursuant to Articles 19 and 20 or otherwise, shall
not affect this Agreement nor such party’s intent, as described above, to contract with the other
remaining parties to the Agreement.

Article 4. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective as to existing
Members of the Authority as set forth in Article 33 hereof. This Agreement shall continue
thereafter until terminated as hereinafter provided. This Agreement shall become effective as to
each new Member upon: (i) approval of its membership by the Board of Directors, (ii) the
execution of this Agreement by the Member, and (iii) upon payment by the Member of its initial
Contribution for a Program. Any subsequent amendments to the Agreement shall be in
accordance with Article 27 of this Agreement.

Article 5. Creation of Authority. Pursuant to the Act, there is hereby created a public
entity separate and apart from the parties hereto, to be known as the Special District Risk
Management Authority. Pursuant to Section 6508.1 of the Act, the debts, liabilities and
obligations of the Authority, including but not limited to, debts, liabilities and obligations of any
of the Programs shall not constitute debts, liabilities or obligations of any party to this
Agreement or to any Member or Former Member.

The Authority is not an insurer, and the coverage programs offered by the Authority do
not provide insurance, but instead provide for pooled joint protection programs among the
members of the Authority. The Joint Protection Programs offered by the Authority constitute
negotiated agreements among the Members which are to be interpreted according to the
principles of contract law, giving full effect to the intent of the Members, acting through the
Board of Directors in establishing the Programs.

Article 6. Powers of Authority. (a) The Authority shall have all of the powers
common to Members and is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary for the exercise of said
common powers, including, but not limited to, any or all of the following:

1) to make and enter into contracts, including the power to accept the
assignment of contracts or other obligations which relate to the purposes
of the Authority, or which were entered into by a Member or Former

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 4 Effective October 2, 2007
19



)

©)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

Member prior to joining the Authority, and to make claims, acquire assets
and incur liabilities;

to accept an assignment from SDWCA of all its assets, obligations and
liabilities prior to the dissolution of SDWCA (including claims and
contracts in existence prior to such dissolution) in order to benefit the
Members or Former Members participating in the SDWCA workers
compensation program; provided, that except for the fair and equitable
allocation of administrative and overhead expenses, funds from such
assignment shall not be co-mingled and shall be separately accounted for
as provided for in this Agreement and the Bylaws.

to incur debts, liabilities, or other obligations, including those which are
not debts, liabilities or obligations of the Members or Former Members, or
any of them;

to charge and collect Contributions and Assessments from Members or
Former Members for participation in Programs;

to receive grants and donations of property, funds, services and other
forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations and governmental
entities;

to acquire, hold, lease or dispose of property, contributions and donations
of property and other forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations
and governmental entities

to acquire, hold or dispose of funds, services, donations and other forms of
assistance from persons, firms, corporations and governmental entities;

to employ agents and employees, and/or to contract for such services;

to incur debts, liabilities or other obligations to finance the Programs and
any other powers available to the Authority under Article 2 or Article 4 of
the Act;

to enter into agreements for the creation of separate public entities and
agencies pursuant to the Act;

to sue and be sued in its own name;

to exercise all powers necessary and proper to carry out the terms and
provisions of this Agreement (including the provision of all other
appropriate ancillary coverages for the benefit of the Members or Former
Members), or otherwise authorized by law or the Act; and

to exercise all powers and perform all acts as otherwise provided for in the
Bylaws.

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 5 Effective October 2, 2007

20



(b) Said powers shall be exercised pursuant to the terms hereof, in the manner provided
by law and in accordance with Section 6509 of the Act. The foregoing powers shall be subject to
the restrictions upon the manner of exercising such powers pertaining to the Member or Former
Member designated in the Bylaws.

Article 7. Board of Directors. Subject to the limitations of this Agreement and the laws
of the State of California, the powers of this Authority shall be vested in and exercised by, and its
property controlled and its affairs conducted by, the Board of the Authority, which is hereby
established and designated as the agency to administer this Agreement pursuant to Section 6506
of the Act. The powers of the Authority shall be exercised through the Board of Directors, who
may, from time to time, adopt and modify Bylaws and other rules and regulations for that
purpose and for the conduct of its meetings as it may deem proper. The officers of the Board
shall be as set forth in the Bylaws.

So long as the MOU has not been terminated or the Authority has not withdrawn from the
MOU, the Board of Directors shall be composed of seven (7) directors elected by the Member
entities who have executed the current operative Agreement and are participating in a Joint
Protection Program. The terms of directors, procedures for election of directors, procedures for
meetings and provisions for reimbursement of Director expenses shall be as set forth in the
Bylaws. Each Member of the Board of Directors shall have one vote. Each Member of the
Board shall serve as set forth in the Bylaws.

So long as the Authority is a participant in the MOU, the Board of Directors of the
Authority shall appoint three (3) members of its board to serve as members of the Alliance
Executive Council. No member of the Board of Directors of the Authority shall serve as a
director on any other board of directors of an entity or organization that is a signatory to the
MOU during the term of the MOU. In the event a director is elected to such a board, that
director shall immediately resign from the Board of Directors of the Authority.

In the event SDRMA withdraws from the MOU, the Board of Directors of the Authority
shall consist of those seven (7) Directors who hold seats on the Authority’s Board of Directors at
the time of the withdrawal and who were duly appointed by the Board, or elected or re-elected by
the Member entities of SDRMA plus the additional directors appointed by CSDA as provided in
Article 25.

Article 8. Compliance with the Brown Act. All meetings of the Board, including,
without limitation, regular, adjourned regular and special meetings, shall be called, noticed, held
and conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, California
Government Code Section 54950 et seq.

Article 9. Powers of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have such
powers and functions as provided for pursuant to this Agreement and the Bylaws and such
additional powers as necessary or appropriate to fulfill the purposes of this Agreement and the
Bylaws, including, but not limited to, the following:

@) to determine details of and select the Program or Programs to be offered,
from time to time, by the Authority;

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 6 Effective October 2, 2007
21



(b) to determine and select all insurance, including Excess or Re-insurance,
necessary to carry out the programs of the Authority;

(c) to contract for, develop or provide through its own employees various
services for the Authority;

(d) to prepare or cause to be prepared the operating budget of the Authority
for each fiscal year;

(e) to receive and act upon reports of committees and from the Chief
Executive Officer;

()] to appoint staff, including a Chief Executive Officer, and employ such
persons as the Board of Directors deems necessary for the administration of this
Authority;

(9) to direct, subject to the terms and conditions of the Coverage Documents,
the payment, adjustment, and defense of all claims involving a Member during
their period of membership in and coverage under a Program;

(h) to fix and collect Contributions and Assessments for participation in the
Programs;

0] to expend funds of the Authority for the purpose of carrying out the
provisions of the Agreement and the Bylaws as they now exist or may be
hereafter amended;

() to purchase excess insurance, liability insurance, stop loss insurance,
officers and directors liability insurance, and such other insurance as the
Authority may deem necessary or proper to protect the Program, employees of the
Authority and employees of the Members;

(K) to defend, pay, compromise, adjust and settle all claims as provided for in
the Coverage Documents;

() to obtain a fidelity bond in such amount as the Board of Directors may
determine for any person or persons who have charge of or the authority to
expend funds for the Authority;

(m)  to establish policies and procedures for the operation of the Authority and
the Programs;

(n) to engage, retain, and discharge agents, representatives, firms, or other
organizations as the Board of Directors deems necessary for the administration of
the Authority;

(o) to enter into any and all contracts or agreements necessary or appropriate
to carry out the purposes and functions of the Authority;

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 7 Effective October 2, 2007
22



(p) to acquire, hold, lease, manage and dispose of, as provided by law, any
and all property necessary or appropriate to carry out the purposes and functions
of the Authority;

(a) to transact any other business which is within the powers of the Board of
Directors;

N to invest funds on hand in a manner authorized by law, the Agreement and
the Bylaws;

(s) to provide financial administration, claims management services, legal
representations, safety engineering, actuarial services, and other services
necessary or proper to carry out the purposes of the Authority either through its
own employees or contracts with one or more third parties;

® to exercise general supervisory and policy control over the Chief
Executive Officer;

(v) to establish committees and sub-committees as it deems necessary to best
serve the interests of the Authority; and

(V) to have such other powers and functions as are provided for pursuant to
the Act, this Agreement or necessary or appropriate to fulfill the purpose of this
Agreement and the Bylaws.

Article 10. Officers of the Authority. The officers of the Authority shall be as set forth
in the Bylaws. The Board may elect or authorize the appointment of such other officers than
those described in the Bylaws as the business of the Authority may require, each of whom shall
hold office for such period, have such authority and perform such duties as are provided in this
Agreement, or as the Board, from time to time, may authorize or determine.

Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by a majority of the directors
of the Board at any regular or special meeting of the Board. Should a vacancy occur in any
office as a result of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause, the Board
may delegate the powers and duties of such office to any officers or to any Members of the
Board until such time as a successor for said office has been appointed.

Article 11. Provision for Bylaws. The Board shall promulgate Bylaws to govern the
day-to-day operations of the Authority. The Board may amend the Bylaws from time to time as
it deems necessary, and as provided in the Bylaws. Each Member shall receive a copy of any
Bylaws and agrees to be bound by and to comply with all of the terms and conditions of the
Bylaws as they exist or as they may be modified. The Bylaws shall be consistent with the terms
of this Agreement. In the event any provision of the bylaws conflicts with a provision of this
Agreement, the provision contained in this Agreement shall control.

Article 12. [Reserved].

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 8 Effective October 2, 2007
23



Article 13. Coverage Programs.

@) The Authority shall maintain such types and levels of coverage for Programs as
determined by the Board of Directors. Such coverage may provide for binding arbitration before
an independent arbitration panel of any disputes concerning coverage between the Authority and
a Member.

(b) The coverage afforded under one or more Programs may include protection for
general liability, auto liability, property, boiler and machinery, public officials errors and
omissions, employment practices, employee benefits liability coverage, employee dishonesty
coverage, public officials personal liability coverage and workers’ compensation, as well as
coverage for other risks which the Board of Directors may determine to be advisable. More than
one type of coverage may be afforded under a single Program.

(c) The Board of Directors may arrange for group policies to be issued for Members, their
board members and employees interested in obtaining additional coverage, at an appropriate
additional cost to those participating Members.

(d) The Board of Directors may arrange for the purchase of Excess or Re-Insurance. The
Authority shall not be liable to any Member or to any other person or organization if such excess
or reinsurance policies are terminated, canceled or non-renewed without prior notice to one or
more Members, or if there is a reduction in the type of coverage afforded under a program by
reason of any change in coverage in a succeeding excess or reinsurance policy, even if such
reduction occurs without prior notice to one or more Members.

Article 14. Implementation of the Programs. The Board of Directors shall establish
the coverage afforded by each Program, the amount of Contributions and Assessments, the
precise cost allocation plans and formulas, provide for the handling of claims, and specify the
amounts and types of Excess or Re-Insurance to be procured. The Contributions and
Assessments for each Program shall be determined by the Board of Directors as set forth herein,
in the Bylaws or in the operating policies established for a Program.

Article 15. Accounts And Records.

@) Annual Budget. The Authority shall, pursuant to the Bylaws, annually adopt an
operating budget, including budgets for each Joint Protection Program.

(b) Funds and Accounts. The Authority shall establish and maintain such funds and
accounts as required by the Board of Directors and as required by generally accepted accounting
principles, including separate funds and accounts for each Program, including Joint Protection
Programs. Books and records of the Authority shall be open to any inspection at all reasonable
times by authorized representatives of Members, or as otherwise required by law.

(©) Investments. Subject to the applicable provisions of any indenture or resolution
providing for the investment of moneys held thereunder, the Authority shall have the power to
invest any money in the treasury that is not required for the immediate necessities of the
Authority, as the Board determines is advisable, in the same manner as local agencies pursuant to

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 9 Effective October 2, 2007
24



California Government Code Sections 53601 et seq. (as such provisions may be amended or
supplemented).

(d) No Commingling. The funds, reserves and accounts of each Program shall not
be commingled and shall be accounted for separately; provided, however, that administration and
overhead expenses of the Authority not related to a specific Program or Programs may be fairly
and equitably allocated among Programs as determined by the Board of Directors. Investments
and cash accounts may be combined for administrative convenience, but a separate accounting
shall be made for balances of individual funds and Program revenues and expenses.

(e) Annual Audit. The Board shall provide for a certified, annual audit of the
accounts and records of the Authority, in the manner set forth in the Bylaws.

Article 16. Services Provided by the Authority. The Authority may provide, at the
sole discretion of the Board of Directors, the following services in connection with this
Agreement:

@ to provide or procure coverage, including but not limited to self-insurance funds
and commercial insurance, as well as excess coverage, re-insurance and umbrella insurance, by
negotiation or bid, and purchase;

(b) to assist Members in obtaining insurance coverage for risks not included within
the coverage of the Authority;

(©) to assist risk managers with the implementation of risk management functions as
it relates to risks covered by the Programs in which the Member participates;

(d) to provide loss prevention and safety consulting services to Members;

(e) to provide claims adjusting and subrogation services for Claims covered by the
Programs;

()] to provide loss analysis and control by the use of statistical analysis, data
processing, and record and file keeping services, in order to identify high exposure operations
and to evaluate proper levels of self-retention and deductibles;

(0) to review Member contracts to determine sufficiency of indemnity and insurance
provisions when requested,

(h) to conduct risk management audits relating to the participation of Members in the
Programs; and

Q) to provide such other services as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

Article 17. Responsibilities of Members. Members or Former Members shall have the
following responsibilities, which shall survive the withdrawal from, or involuntary termination
of participation in, this Agreement:

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 10 Effective October 2, 2007
25



@) Each Member shall designate a person to be responsible for the risk management
function within that Member and to serve as a liaison between the Member and the Authority as
to risk management.

(b) Each Member shall maintain an active safety officer and/or committee, and shall
consider all recommendations of the Authority concerning unsafe practices and/or hazard
mitigation.

(©) Each Member shall maintain its own set of records, including a loss log, in all
categories of risk covered by each Program in which it participates to insure accuracy of the
Authority’s loss reporting system, unless it is no longer deemed necessary by the Board of
Directors.

(d) Each Member shall pay its Contribution, and any adjustments thereto, and any
Assessments within the specified period set forth in the invoice, or as otherwise may be set forth
herein or in the Bylaws. After withdrawal or termination, each Former Member or its successor
shall pay promptly to the Authority its share of any additional Contribution, adjustments or
Assessments, if any, as required of it by the Board of Directors under Article 21 or 22 of this
Agreement or the Bylaws.

(e) Each Member or Former Member shall provide the Authority with such other
information or assistance as may be necessary for the Authority to carry out the Programs under
this Agreement in which the Member or Former Member participates or has participated.

()] Each Member or Former Member shall in any and all ways cooperate with and
assist the Authority and any insurer of the Authority, in all matters relating to this Agreement
and covered claims.

(9) Each Member or Former Member will comply with all Bylaws, rules and
regulations adopted by the Board of Directors.

(h) Each Member shall remain a member in good standing of CSDA.

Article 18. New Members. The Authority shall allow entry into its Programs of new
Members only upon approval of the Board, with any conditions or limitations as the Board
deems appropriate. In order to become a Member and remain a Member, any District must be a
member in good standing of CSDA, shall participate in at least one (1) Joint Protection Program
and shall be authorized to exercise the common powers set forth in this Agreement.

Article 19. Withdrawal.

(A)  Any Member may voluntarily withdraw from this Agreement only at the end of
any applicable Program Year and only if:

Q) The Member has been a signatory to this Agreement for not less than three
(3) full Program Years as of the date of the proposed withdrawal;

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 11 Effective October 2, 2007
26



(i) The Member submits a written withdrawal notification in accordance with
the Bylaws;

(i) In order to withdraw from the agreement the member must have
completed the three (3) full program year participation requirement for
each Joint Protection Program the member participated in at the time of
withdrawal.

(B)  Any Member may voluntarily withdraw from any particular Joint Protection
Program; and

Q) It has participated in such Joint Protection Program for at least three (3)
full Program Years;

(i) it is a participant in another Joint Protection Program; and

(iii)  the Member submits a written withdrawal notification in accordance with
the Bylaws.

(C) In the event that the three year participation requirement as required by (A)(i) or
(B)(i) as to any such Joint Protection Program above has not been met, for each Program the
withdrawing Member participated in at the time of its withdrawal, for less than three years such
withdrawing member shall be obligated to pay all Contributions and Assessments as if that
Member had remained in each such Program for the full three years from the inception of its
membership in the Authority.

(D) Inthe event that the notice is not provided as required by (A)(ii) or (B)(iii) above,
any such withdrawing Member shall, with respect to each Program the Member participated in,
be obligated to pay any and all Contributions and Assessments for the next full Program Year.

(E) A Member may withdraw from any Program (other than a Joint Protection
Program) as provided by the Coverage Documents relating to such Program.

(F) Withdrawal of one or more Members shall not serve to terminate this Agreement.

(G) A Member may not withdraw as a party to this Agreement until it has withdrawn,
as provided in the Bylaws from all of the Programs of the Authority.

Article 20. Involuntary Termination.

€)) Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 19, the Authority shall have the right to
involuntarily terminate any Member’s participation in any Program, or terminate membership in
the Authority, as provided in the Bylaws.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, the participation of any
Member of the Authority, including participation in any of the Authority’s Programs, may be
involuntarily terminated at the discretion of the Board of Directors whenever such Member is
dissolved, consolidated, merged or annexed. A reasonable time shall be afforded, in the

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 12 Effective October 2, 2007
27



discretion of the Board of Directors, to place coverage elsewhere. Any such involuntary
termination shall not relieve the Member or Former Member of its responsibilities as provided
for in Articles 17 or 21.

Article 21. Effect of Withdrawal or Involuntary Termination. The withdrawal from
or involuntary termination of any Member from this Agreement shall not terminate this
Agreement, and such Member, by withdrawing or being involuntarily terminated, shall not be
entitled to payment, return or refund of any Contribution, Assessment, consideration, or other
property paid, or donated by the Member to the Authority, or to any return of any loss reserve
contribution, or to any distribution of assets (except payment of any Retained Earnings, as set
forth in the following paragraph).

The withdrawal from or involuntary termination of any Member after the effective date
of any Program shall not terminate its responsibility to pay its unpaid Contribution adjustments,
or Assessments to such Program. The Board of Directors shall determine the final amount due
from the Member or Former Member by way of contribution or assessments, if any, or any credit
due on account thereof, to the Member or Former Member for the period of its participation.
Such determination shall not be made by the Board of Directors until all Claims, or other unpaid
liabilities, have been finally resolved. In connection with this determination, the Board of
Directors may exercise similar powers to those provided for in Article 22(b) of this Agreement,
or as otherwise set forth in the Bylaws. Upon such withdrawal from or cancellation of
participation in any Program by any Member, said Member shall be entitled to receive its pro
rata share of any Retained Earnings declared by the Board of Directors after the date of said
Member withdraws or is involuntarily terminated.

Article 22. Termination and Distribution; Assignment.

@ This Agreement may be terminated any time with the written consent of two-
thirds of the voting Members; provided, however, that this Agreement and the Authority shall
continue to exist for the purpose of disposing of all claims, distribution of net assets and all other
functions necessary to wind up the affairs of the Authority.

(b) The Board of Directors is vested with all powers of the Authority for the purpose
of winding up and dissolving the business affairs of the Authority. These powers shall include
the power to require Members or Former Members, including those which were signatory hereto
at the time the subject Claims arose or was/were incurred, to pay any Assessment in accordance
with loss allocation formulas for final disposition of all Claims and losses covered by this
Agreement or the Bylaws. A Member or Former Member’s Assessment shall be determined as
set forth in the Bylaws or the applicable Coverage Documents.

(© Upon termination of a Program, all net assets of such Program other than
Retained Earnings shall be distributed only among the Members that are participating in such
Program at the time of termination, in accordance with and proportionate to their cash payments
(including Contributions, adjustments, Assessments and other property at market value when
received) made during the term of this Agreement for such Program. The Board of Directors
shall determine such distribution within six (6) months after disposal of the last pending Claim or
loss covered by such Program, or as otherwise set forth in the Bylaws.

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 13 Effective October 2, 2007
28



(d) Upon termination of this Agreement all net assets of the Authority, other than of
any Program distributed pursuant to (c) above, shall be distributed only among the Members in
good standing at the time of such termination in accordance with and proportionate to their cash
contributions and property at market value when received. The Board of Directors shall
determine such distribution within six (6) months after disposal of the last pending Claim or loss
covered by this Agreement, or as otherwise set forth in the Bylaws.

(e) In the event the Board of Directors is no longer able to assemble a quorum, the
Chief Executive Officer shall exercise all powers and authority under this Article. The decision
of the Board of Directors or Chief Executive Officer under this Article shall be final.

()] In lieu of terminating this Agreement, the Board, with the written consent of two-
thirds of the voting Members, may elect to assign and transfer all of the Authority’s rights,
assets, liabilities and obligations to a successor joint powers authority created under the Act.

Article 23. Enforcement. The Authority is hereby granted authority to enforce this
Agreement. In the event action is instituted to enforce the terms of this Agreement, the Bylaws
and/or any policies and/or procedures of the Board of Directors and the nondefaulting party(s)
should employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of moneys or the enforcement
or performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of the defaulting
party(s) herein contained, the defaulting party agrees that it will on demand therefore pay to the
nondefaulting party(s) the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other expenses so incurred
by the nondefaulting party(s).

Article 24. Nonliability of Directors, Officers and Employees. The Board of
Directors, and the officers and employees of the Authority, including former directors, officers
and employees, shall not be liable to the Authority, to any Member or Former Member, or to any
other person, for actual or alleged breach of duty, mistake of judgment, neglect, error,
misstatement, misleading statement, or any other act or omission in the performance of their
duties hereunder; for any action taken or omitted by any employee or independent contractor; for
loss incurred through the investment or failure to invest funds; or for loss attributable to any
failure or omission to procure or maintain insurance; except in the event of fraud, gross
negligence, or intentional misconduct of such director, officer or employee. No director, officer
or employee, including former directors, officers and employees, shall be liable for any action
taken or omitted by any other director, officer or employee. The Authority shall defend and shall
indemnify and hold harmless its directors, officers and employees, including former directors,
officers and employees, from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, and damages arising
out of their performance of their duties as such directors, officers or employees of the Authority
except in the event of fraud, gross negligence, corruption, malice or intentional misconduct, and
the funds of the Authority shall be used for such purpose. The Authority may purchase
conventional insurance to protect the Authority, and its participating Members or Former
Members, against any such acts or omissions by its directors, officers and employees, including
former directors, officers and employees.

Article 25. Provisions Relating to CSDA. It is agreed and understood the mandatory
membership in CSDA provision in Article 18 is in consideration of CSDA’s exclusive
endorsement of SDRMA’s programs as they exist or may be modified. CSDA and the Authority

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 14 Effective October 2, 2007
29



may from time to time exchange services or enter into separate service agreements pursuant to
Section 6505 of the Act, including, but not limited to, services relating to educational programs,
marketing, web-site graphics and conferences.

So long as the Authority is a participant in the MOU, the Board of the Authority shall
appoint three members of the Board to serve as members of the Alliance Executive Council. In
the event the MOU has been terminated or the Authority has withdrawn from the MOU, the
composition of the Authority Board of Directors shall be increased by two (2) additional
directors to be appointed by CSDA. CSDA appointees shall be a director serving on the CSDA
Board of Directors and said director(s) shall be a member of an agency who is a signatory to the
current SDRMA Joint Powers Agreement.

CSDA shall be a third party beneficiary to Sections 18, 25, 27 of this Agreement.

Article 26. Notices. Notices to Members or Former Members hereunder shall be
sufficient if delivered to the principal office of the respective Member or Former Member.

Article 27. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended at any time by a two-thirds
vote of the Members; provided, that any amendment to Article 18, Article 25, or Article 27 shall
require the prior written consent of CSDA. The Bylaws may be amended as provided therein.
Upon the effective date of any validly approved amendment to this Agreement, such amendment
shall be binding on all Members.

Article 28. Prohibition Against Assignment. No person or organization shall be
entitled to assert the rights, either direct or derivative, of any Member or Former Member under
any coverage agreement or memorandum. No Member or Former Member may assign any right,
claim or interest it may have under this Agreement, and no creditor, assignee or third party
beneficiary of any Member or Former Member shall have any right, claim or title or any part,
share, interest, fund, contribution or asset of the Authority.

Article 29. Agreement Complete. The foregoing constitutes the full and complete
Agreement of the parties. There are no oral understandings or agreements not set forth in writing
herein. This Agreement supersedes and replaces the Fifth Amended Joint Powers Amendment.

Article 30. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts and shall be as fully effective as though executed in one document.

Article 31. California Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State
of California.

Article 32. Severability. Should any part, term or provisions of this Agreement be
determined by any court of component jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the
State of California or otherwise be rendered unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the
remaining portions or provisions shall not be affected thereby.

Article 33. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective as to existing
Members of the Authority on the date on which the last of two-thirds of such Members have
executed this Agreement.

SDRMA 6" Amended JPA 15 Effective October 2, 2007
30



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have first executed this Agreement by
authorized officials thereof on the date indicated below:

AZM@\
~ | @ 2, w7

Ken S’onksen, President
Board of Directors Date
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

I hereby certify this Amended Joint Powers Agreement has also received the required approval
of not less than two-thirds of the Member entities then parties to the Fifth Amended Joint Powers
Agreement.

=
CYoEl 2t 007 3 %07

Jame . Towns, Chief Executive Officer Date 4
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

SDRMA 6™ Amended JPA 16 Effective October 2, 2007
31



EXECUTION BY MEMBER

The Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Special District Risk Management
Authority, has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Member listed below, on the date
shown, and said Member agrees to be subject to all of the terms and conditions set forth in said
Agreement.

Entity Name:

By: President
By: Clerk
Date:

EXECUTION BY AUTHORITY

The Special District Risk Management Authority (the “Authority”), operating and functioning
pursuant to this Sixth Amended Joint Powers Agreement, hereby accepts the entity named above
as a participating member in the Authority, subject to all of the terms and conditions set forth in
this Sixth Amended Joint Powers Agreement and in the Bylaws, effective as of

SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

By:
President, SDRMA Board of Directors

Date:

32



BYLAWS
OF
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

THESE BYLAWS are for the regulation of Special District Risk Management Authority (the
“Authority”). The definitions of terms used in these Bylaws shall be those definitions contained
in the Sixth Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement relating to the Authority (the
“Agreement”), supplements to such Agreement, and subsequent amendments to such
Agreement, unless the context requires otherwise.

ARTICLE |
MEMBERSHIP

1. Eligibility
Any district, public agency, or public entity organized under the laws of the State of
California, which is a member of the California Special Districts Association (“CSDA”) is
eligible for membership in the Authority upon approval by the Board of Directors of the
Authority.

2. Participating Member

A “Member,” as that term is used herein, is any public entity described in Section 1 above in
the State of California whose participation in the Authority has been approved by the Board
of Directors, and which (a) has executed the Joint Powers Agreement or successor
document pursuant to which these Bylaws are adopted, and (b) which participates in a Joint
Protection Program. All members shall at all times be a participant in either the
Property/Liability Program or Workers’ Compensation Program established by the
Authority.

3. Successor Member Entity
Should any Member reorganize in accordance with the statutes of the State of California,
the successor in interest, or successors in interest, if a member of CSDA, may be substituted
as a Member upon approval by the Board of Directors of the Authority.

4. Annual Membership Meeting
An annual meeting of the members of the Authority shall be held at a time and place to be
determined by the Board of Directors. The annual meeting shall be conducted in
accordance with policies established by the Board of Directors. Each and every entity that is
a Member of the Authority shall, no less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to such
meeting, be given notice of the time and place of the meeting. The final agenda will be
posted 72 hours prior to the meeting in the manner provided by the Ralph M. Brown Act

33



(California Government Code Section 54950 et seq. (the “Brown Act”). The agenda shall
include:

a.

Those matters which are intended to be presented for action by the Board of
Directors;

The general nature of any proposal to be presented for action; and

Such other matters, if any, as may be expressly required by statute or by the
Agreement.

ARTICLE II
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Powers

Under the Agreement or successor document, the Authority is empowered to carry out all
of its powers and functions through a Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have
the powers set forth as follows, or as otherwise provided in the Agreement:

a.

> o

to make and enter into contracts, including the power to accept the assignment of
contracts or other obligations which relate to the purposes of the Authority, or which
were entered into by a Member or Former Member prior to joining the Authority, and
to make claims, acquire assets and incur liabilities;

to incur debts, liabilities, or other obligations, including those which are not debts,
liabilities or obligations of the Members or Former Members, or any of them;

to charge and collect Contributions and Assessments from Members or Former
Members for participation in Programs;

to receive grants and donations of property, funds, services and other forms of
assistance from persons, firms, corporations and governmental entities;

to acquire, hold, lease or dispose of property, contributions and donations of property
and other forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations and governmental
entities;

to acquire, hold or dispose of funds, services, donations and other forms of assistance
from persons, firms, corporations and governmental entities;

to employ agents and employees, and/or to contract for such services;

to incur debts, liabilities or other obligations to finance the Programs and any other
powers available to the Authority;

to enter into agreements for the creation of separate public entities and agencies
pursuant to the Act;

to sue and be sued in its own name; and

to exercise all powers necessary and proper to carry out the terms and provisions of the
Agreement (including the provision of all other appropriate ancillary coverages for the
benefit of the Members or Former Members), or otherwise authorized by law or the
Act.

34



2. Nomination of Directors

3.

Members may nominate candidates to the Board of Directors in the following manner:

a. A Member may place into nomination its candidate for any open position on the Board
of Directors in accordance with election guidelines established by the Board of
Directors.

b. Each candidate for election as a director must be a member of the board of directors or
a management employee of a Member (as determined by the Member’s governing
board). Only one representative from any Member may serve on the Board of Directors
at the same time.

c. Nominating forms must be completed and received by the Authority at least thirty (30)
days before the date the election will occur.

d. This nomination process shall be the sole method for placing candidates into
nomination for the Board of Directors.

Terms of Directors

The composition of the Board shall be as set forth in the Agreement. The election of
directors shall be held in each odd-numbered year. The terms of the directors elected by
the Members will be staggered. Four directors will serve four-year terms, to end on
December 31 of one odd-numbered year. Three directors will serve four-year terms, to end
on December 31 of the alternate odd-numbered year.

The failure of a director to attend three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board
(provided such meetings shall occur in a period of not less than three (3) successive
months), except when prevented by sickness, or except when absent from the State with
the prior consent of the Board, as provided by Government Code, Section 1770 shall cause
such director’s remaining term in office to be considered vacant. A successor director shall
be selected for the duration of such director’s term as set forth in Section 5 hereof.

Election of Directors

Members may vote for directors in accordance with the balloting process guidelines
established herein or as otherwise established by policy of the Board of Directors. Each
Member shall have one vote in the election per elected position.

The Board of Directors will conduct the election of directors to serve on the Board of

Directors. Notice shall be sent to each Member no later than ninety (90) days prior to the
date scheduled for such election. Said notice shall (i) inform each Member of the positions

35



to be filled on the Board of Directors at such election; and (ii) inform each Member of its
right to nominate candidates for any office to be filled at the election to Article Il, Section 2
of the Bylaws. A form of ballot containing nominations accepted for any office to be filled at
the election shall be sent in accordance with policy established by the Board of Directors to
each Member. Said ballot shall indicate that each Member may return the ballot in
accordance with policy established by the Board of Directors and that only those ballots
received prior to the close of business on the date designated for the election shall be
considered valid and counted.

Vacancy

Upon the death or resignation of any member of the elected Board of Directors, or the
determination such member’s remaining term is vacant pursuant to Section 3 hereof, the
vacancy shall be filled for the balance of the unexpired term by appointment in accordance
with policy established by the Board of Directors.

Meetings

The business of the Board of Directors shall be conducted and exercised only at a regular or
special meeting of the Board of Directors held in accordance with law. Written or electronic
notice of each meeting shall be given to each director of the Board by written or electronic
communication, in the manner provided by the Brown Act. Such notice shall specify the
place, the date, and the hour of such meeting.

Special meetings of the Board of Directors, for the purpose of taking any action permitted
by statute and the Agreement, may be called at any time by the President, or by the Vice
President in the absence or disability of the President, or by a majority of the members of
the Board. The notice of the special meeting shall specify the time and place of the meeting
and the business to be transacted. No other business shall be considered at the meeting.

Any annual, regular, or special Board of Directors’ meeting, whether or not a quorum is
present, may be adjourned from time to time, as provided by the Brown Act.

Minutes of any and all open meetings shall be available to Members upon request and
distributed electronically or available on the Authority’s MemberPlus on-line web portal.

Quorum and Required Vote

A quorum of the Board of Directors shall be a majority of the total number of directors. A
guorum must be present at any meeting before the business of the Board of Directors can
be transacted. Four directors shall constitute a quorum. The vote of a majority of the Board
of Directors shall be required for any act or decision of the Board of Directors, except as
otherwise specifically provided by law or the Agreement. The directors present at a duly

36



called or held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to do business until
adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal from the meeting of enough directors to
leave less than a quorum.

8. Expenses

Board members shall be reimbursed by the Authority in accordance with policy approved by
the Board of Directors for all reasonable and necessary travel expenses when required or
incurred by any director in connection with attendance at a meeting of the Board of
Directors or a committee thereof and for such other expenses as are approved by the
Board. These expenses shall include, but shall not be limited to, all charges for meals,
lodging, airfare, and the costs of travel by automobile at a rate per mile established by the
Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 11l
OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

1. President, Vice President and Secretary
There shall be three officers of the Board: a president, a vice president and a secretary, who
shall be members of the Board of Directors.

Election of officers shall be held at the first meeting following January 1 of each year, and
each officer’s term shall begin immediately thereafter, and shall end following adjournment
of the first meeting following January 1 of the next year, or as soon thereafter as a
successor is elected.

In the event the president, vice president or secretary so elected ceases to be a member of
the Board of Directors, the resulting vacancy in the office shall be filled by election at the
next regular meeting of the Board of Directors after such vacancy occurs. The president or
vice president may be removed, without cause, by the Board of Directors at any regular or
special meeting thereof, by a two-thirds vote of the voting members of the Board.

The president shall preside at and conduct all meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall
carry out the resolutions and orders of the Board of Directors and shall exercise such other
powers and perform such other duties as the Board of Directors shall prescribe. The
president shall be ex-officio a member of all standing committees, if any. In the absence of
the president, the vice president shall carry out the duties of the president. The secretary
shall keep, or cause to be kept, minutes of all meetings, and shall have such other powers
and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

2. Board Committees

37



Committees of the Board may be appointed in accordance with policy established by the
Board of Directors, and membership on such committees may be open to non-members of
the Board of Directors. Committees shall include at least one (1) member of the Board of
Directors, but may not include a majority of the Board of Directors.

Chief Executive Officer

The Board shall appoint a Chief Executive Officer who shall have general administrative
responsibility for the activities of the Authority. The Chief Executive Officer shall be paid by
the Authority and is a contract position.

The Chief Executive Officer shall record or cause to be recorded, and shall keep or cause to
be kept, at the principal executive office, a book of minutes of actions taken at all meetings
of the Board of Directors, whether regular or special (and, if special, how authorized), the
notice thereof given, the names of those present at the meetings, and the proceedings
thereof. The Chief Executive Officer/ shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal
executive office of the Authority a list of all designated representatives and alternates of
each Member. The Chief Executive Officer/ shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all the
meetings of the Board of Directors required by the Bylaws or by statute to be given, and
shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the
Board, the Agreement or the Bylaws.

The Chief Executive Officer shall have the duty of administering the Programs of the
Authority, as provided for in the Agreement, shall have direct supervisory control of and
responsibility for the operation of the Authority including appointment of necessary
employees thereof, subject to the approved budget and prior authorization of each position
by the Board, and such other related duties as may be prescribed by the Board or elsewhere
in these Bylaws or the Agreement.

Execution of Contracts

The Board may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract
or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, and such
authorization may be general or confined to specific instances except as otherwise provided
by these Bylaws or the Agreement. Unless so authorized by the Board, no officer, agent or
employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Authority by any contract or
engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or to any amount.

Resignation

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the president or to the Chief
Executive Officer of the Authority, without prejudice, however, to the rights, if any, of the
Authority under any contract to which such officer is a party. Any such resignation shall take

38



effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein; and,
unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be
necessary to make it effective.

ARTICLE IV
TREASURER AND AUDITOR

Treasurer
The Board appoints the Chief Executive Officer to the position of Treasurer, who shall
comply with the provisions of Government Code Section 6505.5 (a-d).

Auditor

The Auditor shall draw warrants to pay demands against SDRMA when approved by the
Treasurer. Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505.6, the Board appoints the Chief
Financial Officer to the position of Auditor, who shall comply with the provisions of
Government Code Section 6505.5 (a-e).

ARTICLE V
DESIGNATED ENTITY

The Lewiston Community Services District is hereby designated as the applicable entity for
defining the restrictions upon the manner of exercising power as set forth in the California
Government Code Section 6509, and as provided for in the Agreement of which these
Bylaws are a part.

Should the Lewiston Community Services District terminate its membership or be
involuntarily terminated in accordance with provisions of these Bylaws, the Board of
Directors shall, by resolution, name a successor Member as the “designated entity” until
such time as this Article can be amended.

ARTICLE VI
JOINT PROTECTION PROGRAMS

Implementation of Joint Protection Programs

The Board of Directors may, at any time, offer such Programs as it may deem desirable.
Such Program or Programs shall be offered on such terms and conditions as the Board of
Directors may determine. Members must participate in at least one Joint Protection
Program, but participation in any additional Programs or plans will be optional. Those
Programs currently include: Property/Liability, Workers” Compensation, Health Benefits and
various optional ancillary coverages. The Board of Directors shall establish the amount of
Contributions, Estimated Contributions and Assessments, determine the amount of loss

39



reserves, provide for the handling of claims, determine both the type and amount of
insurance and/or reinsurance, if any, to be purchased, and otherwise establish the policies
and procedures necessary to provide a particular Program for Members. As soon as feasible
after development of the details of a Program, the specific rules and regulations for the
implementation of such Program shall be adopted by the Board, which shall cause them to
be set forth in written form in a Memorandum of Coverage document and Claims Manual
prepared by the Authority for the Members.

2. Method of Calculating Contributions
The Board of Directors shall establish the method of calculating contributions for Members
in each Program or plan annually.

ARTICLE VII
FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

1. Accounts and Records

In compliance with California Government Code Sections 6505.5 and 6505.6 (or as they may
be amended), the Treasurer of the Authority shall establish and maintain such bank
accounts and maintain such books and records as determined by the Board of Directors and
as required by generally accepted accounting principles, the Governing Documents,
applicable law, or any Resolution of the Authority. Books and records of the Authority shall
be open to inspection at all reasonable times by authorized representatives of Members.
Periodically, but not less often than annually, financial reports shall be made available to all
Members.

As provided in the Agreement, the funds, reserves and accounts of each Program shall not
be commingled and shall be separately accounted for; provided, however, that
administration and overhead expenses of the Authority not related to a specific Program or
Programs may be allocated among Programs as determined by the Board of Directors.

2. Audit

The Authority shall obtain an annual audit of its financial statements, which audit shall be
made by an independent certified public accountant and shall conform to generally
accepted auditing standards and accounting principles. A copy of said audit report shall be
available, upon request, to each of the Members. Such audit report shall be obtained and
filed within six months after the end of the fiscal year under examination with the State
Controller and the Auditor-Controller of Sacramento County. A copy will also be posted to
the Authority’s website.

3. Annual Budget

40



Prior to the beginning of each Fiscal Year (or Program Year, as appropriate) the Board shall
annually approve an operating budget for the Authority, including a budget for each Joint
Protection Program.

4. Risk Sharing
a. Except as otherwise determined by the Board, all Programs established and/or operated
under the Agreement or these Bylaws are intended to be risk-sharing programs.
Notwithstanding this intention, and upon findings by the Board of Directors of the
Authority that confirm the value thereof, the Board of Directors may recognize sound
risk management and loss control by the members through contribution and coverage
modifications.

b. The Board of Directors authorizes the Chief Executive Officer to make adjustments to a
member agency’s specific deductibles, experience modification factor or the coverage
afforded based on:

i. The Member’s loss experience in comparison to the loss experience of the other
members;

ii. Non-compliance with SDRMA recommended risk management or loss control
measures;

iii. The Member’s failure to allow SDRMA or its agents reasonable access to facilities
and records in the event of a claim or a loss control inspection;

iv. The Member’s failure to cooperate with SDRMA’s officers, agents, employees,
attorneys and claim adjusters; or

v. The Member’s failure to honor any other reasonable request by SDRMA with respect
to fulfilling the Member’s responsibilities as outlined in Article 17 of the Joint
Powers Agreement relating to the Authority.

5. Distribution of Net Position

Any Net Position from the operation of any Program, in such amounts and under such terms
and conditions as may be determined by the Board of Directors, may be distributed to the
Members in such Program. Any distribution of such funds shall be made on a pro rata basis
in relation to net contributions paid to that Program and shall be made only to those
Members which participated in the Program during the Program Year in which the Net
Position were generated. Such distributions may be made to Members based on the
Program Year(s) during which the Member participated, even if the Member is not a
Member at the time of the distribution.

6. Assessments
a. If, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, claims against Members in any particular
Program or plan for any particular Program Year are of such a magnitude as to endanger

41



the ability of the Authority to continue to meet its obligations for that Program for that
Program Year, each Member who has participated in that particular Program or plan of
the Authority during the applicable Program Year shall be assessed a pro rata share of
the additional amount determined necessary by the Board of Directors to restore the
ability of the Authority to continue to meet its obligations for the applicable Program
Year.

b. Each Member’s pro rata share of the total Assessment shall be in the same proportion
as that Member’s gross contributions paid during or due for the applicable Program
Year bears to the total gross Contributions paid by or due from all Members during the
applicable Program Year. In calculating these amounts, the Assessment shall not be
included in gross Contributions.

c. Failure of any Member to pay any regular Contribution or Assessment when due shall be
cause for the involuntary termination of that entity’s membership in the Authority. Such
Assessment shall be a debt due by all Members who have participated in the applicable
Program or plan during the applicable Program Year, and shall not be discharged by
termination of membership.

7. Fiscal Year
The Authority shall operate on a fiscal year commencing on July 1 and ending on the
following June 30. Such fiscal year shall also be the Program Year for any Member in any
Joint Protection Program.

8. Agency Funds; No Loans

All funds received within a Joint Protection Program, as determined by the Board, for the
purposes of the Authority shall be utilized solely for the purposes of such Joint Protection
Program, and all expenditures of funds shall be made only upon signatures authorized by
the Board of Directors, which shall establish the necessary procedures for doing so. Any
funds not required for the immediate need of the Authority, as determined by the Board of
Directors, may be invested in any manner authorized by law for the investment of funds of
a special district.

Except for the allocation of administrative and overhead expenses, and for investment
purposes as set forth in the Agreement, Program funds shall not be commingled and shall
be separately accounted for.

The Board may not approve loans between Programs.

9. Grants and Donations

42



10.

Without in any way limiting the powers otherwise provided for in the Agreement, these
Bylaws, or by statute, the Authority shall have the power and authority to receive, accept,
and utilize the services of personnel offered by any Member, or their representatives or
agents; to receive, accept, and utilize property, real or personal, from any Member or its
agents or representatives; and to receive, accept, expend, and disburse funds by contract or
otherwise, for purposes consistent with the provisions of the Agreement, which funds may
be provided by any Member, their agents, or representatives.

Recovery of Payment

In the event of any payment by the Authority, the Authority may on behalf of the Member,
either in the name of the Authority, in the name of the Member or both, recover sums paid
to or on behalf of the Member from any person or organization liable, legally, contractually
or otherwise, and the Member shall execute and deliver such instruments and papers, and
do whatever else is necessary including execution of an assignment of all claims, including
all rights to recover attorney fees, to the Authority or to a third party at the Authority’s
request, to secure such recovery and shall do nothing to impair such recovery. All sums
recovered shall be applied to reimburse the Authority for payments made to or on behalf of
the Member, to reimburse the Authority for the expense of such recovery, and to reimburse
the Member for any deductible or co-insurance penalty paid.

ARTICLE VIII
WITHDRAWALS; TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP

Withdrawal from Programs

A Member may voluntarily withdraw from any particular Program only in accordance with
the applicable provision of the Agreement or any successor document thereto. A Member
may withdraw from a Program without withdrawing from the Agreement if it is a
participant in another Joint Protection Program of the Authority. Notice of intention to
withdraw from a Program must be given to the Authority at least ninety (90) days prior to
the end of the Program Year. No withdrawal shall become effective until the end of the
applicable Program Year.

Involuntary Termination

Membership shall be deemed automatically terminated immediately and without prior
notice upon the failure of any Member to maintain membership in at least one of the
Authority’s Programs.

In addition, a Member may be terminated from membership in a Program or the

Agreement for cause upon a majority vote of the Board of Directors. The effective date of
such termination shall be as determined by the Board of Directors, except that such

43



termination shall take effect no later than sixty (60) days following the Board’s decision to

terminate and notice thereof is provided to the Member pursuant to Article VIII, Section 3.

For purposes of this Section, cause shall be deemed to include the following:

a. Failure to pay any contribution, deposit, contribution to loss reserve, or assessment
when due.

b. Failure to comply with the Bylaws or with the policies and procedures established by the
Authority.

c. Based on a Member’s loss experience, the Board of Directors has determined it to be
detrimental to the stability of the pool.

d. Dissolution of a Member.

Failure to maintain membership in CSDA.

f. Failure to undertake or continue risk management or loss control measures
recommended by SDRMA or the Board of Directors.

g. Failure to allow SDRMA or its agents reasonable access to all facilities and records of the
Member which are necessary for the proper administration of a Program.

h. Failure to cooperate fully with SDRMA officers, employees, attorneys, claims adjusters
or other agents.

i. Failure of a Member, the elected governing body of a Member, or of other personnel of
the Member to exercise the Member’s powers or fulfill the Member’s duties in
accordance with the Constitution or laws of the State of California.

j-  Any other act, omission or event, whether or not the fault of the Member, which causes
the Member’s continued membership in SDRMA to be inconsistent with the best
interests of SDRMA or any of its programs.

Notification; Hearing, Obligations Upon Involuntary Termination
A Member which is automatically terminated on account of its failure to maintain
membership in at least one of the Authority’s Programs shall be given notice of such
termination within thirty (30) days after such automatic termination. However, the failure
to give such notice shall not operate to reinstate such Member.

If the Chief Executive Officer determines that cause exists for a Member’s termination and
that the Member should, in the best interest of the Authority, be terminated, the Chief
Executive Officer shall issue a written notice to the Member, sent by certified or first class
mail, stating the reason or reasons for the proposed termination. In addition, the notice
shall state that the Board of Directors, at the next regularly scheduled meeting or at a
special meeting, on a date specified in the notice at least thirty (30) days following the date
of the notice, will consider the Member’s termination at the recommendation of the Chief
Executive Officer, and invite the Member to request a hearing on the proposed termination
at the board meeting. Any request for a hearing must be made within ten (10) days of the
date of the notice. If a hearing is timely requested by the Member at the meeting specified

44



in the notice the Chief Executive Officer shall present the case for termination for cause to
the Board of Directors. The Member shall have a reasonable opportunity to present its case
to the Board of Directors and may attempt to show that since the date of the notice, it has
undertaken steps to cure any curable grounds for termination.

The decision by a majority of the Board of Directors to terminate a Member shall be final
and shall not be subject to appeal in any forum. Notice of the Board’s decision shall be
given to the Member by certified or first class mail within five (5) days following the
decision of the Board of Directors and shall state the effective date of the termination.

Any terminated Member shall continue to be bound to those same continuing obligations
to which a withdrawing Member is obligated in accordance with Article VIII, Section 6 of
these Bylaws.

Voluntary Withdrawal from Agreement

A Member may withdraw voluntarily only as provided in the Agreement. Notice of intention
to withdraw from the Agreement must be given to the Authority at least 90 days prior to
the end of the Program Year of any Program in which the Member participates at the time
of the notice.

Payment Upon Termination of Membership

In the event of a termination of the membership of any Member by involuntary or voluntary
termination, said Member shall thereafter be entitled to receive its pro rata share of any
distribution of Net Position declared by the Board of Directors that pertains to a coverage
year during which the terminated Member participated in any particular Program for which
such distribution is made. Such payment shall be in full settlement and satisfaction of any
and all claims that said terminated Member may have against the Authority.

Continued Liability

Upon withdrawal or involuntary termination of a Member, the Agreement shall not
terminate and that Member shall continue to be responsible for any unpaid Contributions
and for any Assessment(s) levied in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement or
Bylaws. Such Member, by withdrawing or being involuntarily terminated, shall not be
entitled to payment, return or refund of any Contribution, Assessment, consideration, or
other property paid or donated by the Member to the Authority, or to return of any loss
reserve contribution, or to any distribution of assets (except payment of any Net Position,
as set forth in Article VIII, section 5 above).

45



ARTICLE IX
TERMINATION OF THE AUTHORITY; TERMINATION OF PROGRAMS

1. After having made proper provision for the winding up of the affairs of the Authority and
each of the Programs operated by the Authority, the Authority shall distribute the net
assets of the Authority as follows:

a. The net remaining assets of the Property/Liability Joint Protection Program shall be paid
on a pro rata share basis to each Member who is a member of said Joint Protection
Program at the time of termination of the Authority. A Member’s pro rata share shall be
in the same proportion as the total Contributions and Assessments paid by that Member
to said Joint Protection Program or its predecessor in interest from its inception in 1986
and continuing throughout said Member’s period of participation bears to the total
Contributions and Assessments paid to said Joint Protection Program and its
predecessors in interest during its period of operation by all members of said Joint
Protection Program at the time of termination.

b. The Authority shall pay to each Member who is a member of the Workers’
Compensation Coverage Joint Protection Program at the time of termination its pro rata
share of the net remaining assets of said Joint Protection Program. A member’s pro rata
share shall be in the same proportion as the total Contributions and Assessments paid
by that Member to said Joint Protection Program and its predecessor in interest offered
by SDWCA, from its inception in 1982 and continuing throughout that Member’s
participation, bears to the total Contributions and Assessments paid to said Joint
Protection Program and its predecessors in interest offered by SDWCA, during its period
of operation by all members of said Joint Protection Program at the time of termination.

c. The Authority shall pay to each Member who is a member of any additional Program,
excluding the Health Benefits Program operated by the Authority at the time of
termination its pro rata share of the net remaining assets of said Program. A Member’s
pro rata share shall be in the same proportion as the total Contributions and
Assessments paid by that Member to such Program during its period of participation
bears to the total Contributions and Assessments paid to that Program during its entire
period of operation by all Members of that Program at the time of termination.

2. The Board of Directors is also vested with the power to terminate individual Programs
operated by the Authority without terminating the Agreement or terminating the Authority.
In the event of termination of a Program operated by the Authority, said Program shall
continue to exist for the purpose of paying or making provision for the payment of all
known claims arising within said Program; for insuring, reinsuring or making other provision

46



for the payment of any and all unknown claims covered by such Program; for the payment
of all debts, liabilities, administrative expenses, and obligations of that Program out of the
assets of that Program; and to perform all other functions necessary to wind up the
business affairs of that Program. After having made proper provisions for the winding up
the business affairs of a terminated Program, the Authority shall pay to each Member who
is a member of that Program at the time of termination its pro rata share of net remaining
assets of that Program. A Member’s pro rata share of the net remaining assets of each such
terminated Program shall be computed as set forth in paragraph (1) above.

In lieu of terminating this Agreement, the Board, with the written consent of two-thirds of
the existing Members, may elect to assign and transfer all of the Authority’s rights, assets,
claims, liabilities and obligations to a successor joint powers authority created under the
Act.

ARTICLE X
PROVISIONS RELATING TO CSDA

Board of Directors; Alliance Executive Council

In the event the Alliance Executive Council MOU has been terminated or the Authority has
withdrawn from the MOU, two (2) additional directors to be appointed by CSDA shall
increase the composition of the Board of Directors. So long as the Authority is a participant
in the MOU, the Board shall appoint three (3) members of the Board to serve as members
of the Alliance Executive Council.

CSDA is authorized to appoint two (2) directors as provided in the Agreement, the terms of
such appointed directors will end on December 31 of the alternate odd-numbered year to

coincide with SDRMA’s election of the minority number of directors.

Upon the death or resignation of a member of the Board of Directors appointed by CSDA,
the vacancy shall be filled for the balance of the unexpired term by appointment by CSDA.

47



Jf{ T,

SDRMA Amended Bylaws SDR ’“'lA

ARTICLE XI
AMENDMENTS; EFFECTIVE DATE

These Bylaws may be amended at any time by majority vote of the Board of Directors
following a 30-day notice to all Members as to the amendment(s) proposed to be adopted,
except that these Bylaws cannot be amended in any way that would conflict with the terms
and provisions of the Agreement or successor document and any amendment thereof. Said
notice provided to members shall include notification of the Board meeting date, time and
location that action will be taken by the Board on the proposed amendments.

ARTICLE Xl
PRIOR BYLAWS REVOKED

When approved by the Board of Directors these Bylaws, upon coming effective pursuant to
Article Xl will supersede and replace all prior bylaws.

* %k %k %k ¥k
AYES: 7 — Seifert-Raffelson, Swan, Claypool, Scheafer, Unruh, Wright, Housley
NOES: 0
ABSTAINED: O
ABSENT: 0
Approved:

2 W,
Sandy Seife é@s&n Pr sndent Board

Date: August™/, 2024
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Special District Risk Management Authority Page 16 o?%
Amended Bylaws — Effective August 16, 2024



~
SDRMA Amended Bylaws SDRMA

Attested:

Brian Kelley, ARM, Chief Execuj#
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Special District Risk Management Authority Page 17 0?117

Amended Bylaws — Effective August 16, 2024



Attachment 2

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF (AGENCY NAME HERE) APPROVING THE
FORM OF AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A SIXTH AMENDED JOINT POWERS
AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT
AUTHORITY PROPERTY /LIABILITY PROGRAM and WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

WHEREAS, (Agency Name Here), a special district duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of
the State of California (the “Agency”), has determined that it is in the best interest and to the advantage of the
Agency to participate for at least three full years in the property/liability program and workers’ compensation
program offered by the Special District Risk Management Authority (the “Authority”); and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 6500 et seq., provides that two or more public agencies may by
agreement jointly exercise any power common to the contracting parties; and

WHEREAS, Special District Risk Management Authority was formed in 1986 in accordance with the provisions of
California Government Code 6500 et seq., for the purpose of providing its members with risk financing and risk
management programs; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.4 provides that a local public entity may self-insure, purchase
insurance through an authorized carrier, or purchase insurance through a surplus lines broker, or any combination
of these; and

WHEREAS, participation in Special District Risk Management Authority programs requires the Agency to execute
and enter into a Sixth Amended Joint Powers Agreement (the “Amended JPA Agreement”); which states the
purpose and powers of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the laws of the State of California to exist, to have happened
and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with the consummation of the transactions
authorized hereby do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner
as required by law, and the Agency is now duly authorized and empowered, pursuant to each and every
requirement of law, to consummate such transactions for the purpose, in the manner and upon the terms herein
provided.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Findings. The Agency Board of Directors hereby specifically finds and determines that the actions
authorized hereby relate to the public affairs of the Agency.

Section 2. Sixth Amended JPA Agreement. The Amended JPA Agreement, proposed to be executed and entered
into by and between the Agency and members of the Special District Risk Management Authority, in the form
presented at this meeting and on file with the Agency Secretary, is hereby approved. The Agency Board and/or
Authorized Officers (“The Authorized Officers”) are hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on
behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver to the Authority the Amended JPA Agreement in substantially said
form, with such changes therein as such officers may require or approve, such approval to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof.

Section 3. Program Participation. The Agency Board of Directors approves participating for three full program
years in Special District Risk Management Authority Property/Liability Program and Workers’ Compensation
Program.

50



Section 4. Other Actions. The Authorized Officers of the Agency are each hereby authorized and directed to
execute and deliver any and all documents which is necessary in order to consummate the transactions authorized
hereby and all such actions heretofore taken by such officers are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.

Section 5. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of , 20 by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
Name
Title
Agency Secretary

U:\reformatted forms\Both CSDA Non-Member Packet\Attachment 1 Resolution 5th Amended BOTH CSDA Non-Member Packet.DOC

51



RESOLUTION No. XXXXXXXXX

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF
THE AGENCY NAME,

DECLARING THAT GOVERNING BODY MEMBERS AND VOLUNTEERS SHALL
BE DEEMED TO BE EMPLOYEES OF THE DISTRICT FOR THE PURPOSE OF
PROVIDING WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COVERAGE FOR SAID CERTAIN

INDIVIDUALS WHILE PROVIDING THEIR SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Agency Name utilizes the services of Governing Body Members and Volunteers; and

WHEREAS, Section 3363.5 of the California Labor Code provides that a person who performs voluntary
service for a public agency as designated and authorized by the Governing Body of the agency or its designee, shall,
upon adoption of a resolution by the Governing Body of the agency so declaring, be deemed to be an employee of
the agency for the purpose of Division 4 of said Labor Code while performing such services; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body wishes to extend Workers’ Compensation coverage as provided by State
law to the following designated categories of persons as indicated by a checkmark in the box to the left of the
descriptions:

O All Members of the Governing Body of the [Agency Name] as presently or hereafter constituted
and/or

All persons performing voluntary services without pay other than meals, transportation, lodging or
reimbursement for incidental expenses

Individuals on Work-study programs

Interns

Other Volunteers

oooo 0O

[designate]

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that such persons coming within the categories specified above,
including the duly elected or appointed replacements of any Governing Body Member and other designated
individuals be deemed to be employees of the Agency Name for the purpose of Workers’ Compensation coverage as
provided in Division 4 of the Labor Code while performing such service. However, said Governing Body Members and
other designated individuals will not be considered an employee of the Agency Name for any purpose other than for
such Workers’ Compensation coverage, nor grant nor enlarge upon any other right, duty, or responsibility of such
Governing Body Members or other designated individuals, nor allow such persons to claim any other benefits or
rights given to paid employees of the Agency Name.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this DATE by the following vote:
AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:

Name, Chairperson
Agency Name

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

52



8 LAFCO

/484%64[@ Local Agency Formation Commission

AGENDA REPORT
October 20, 2025
Item No. 5
TO: Alameda Commissioners
FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer

SUBJECT: Delegation of Limited Transition Plan Authority to Ad Hoc Selection Committee

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) is asked to delegate limited
authority to the Ad Hoc Selection Committee (Chair Johnson, Commissioners Faria and Woerner)
to make time-sensitive decisions necessary to implement LAFCO’s transition to administrative
and fiscal independence by January 1, 2026. The scope mirrors actions previously discussed by
the Commission (e.g., selection of health benefits and retirement platforms, payroll and HR
implementation steps, and execution of standard-form agreements/MOUs), but consolidates
decision-making between regular meetings to avoid multiple special meetings. All actions taken
under this delegation would be reported at the next regular meeting and/or placed on the consent
calendar for ratification as appropriate.

Background

The Commission has approved a Transition Plan and initiated multiple, parallel implementation
tracks (benefits, retirement, payroll, accounting, banking, MOUs, and related policies). Many
vendor and agency timelines require responses within days and are interdependent (benefit
selections influence payroll codes and policy language). While the Commission has provided
direction on preferred frameworks and evaluation criteria, scheduling special meetings for each
discrete decision is impractical and risks missing carrier and plan deadlines tied to January 1, 2026
independence deadline.

An Ad Hoc Selection Committee (Johnson, Faria, Woerner) has been meeting with staff and
advisors throughout the transition. Given its makeup (less than a quorum) and limited term and
defined purpose, the committee may consult with staff between meetings without the Brown Act
notice obligations applicable to standing committees.

Discussion

This action would delegate limited, time-bound authority to the Ad Hoc Selection Committee to
finalize selections and authorize execution of routine, transition-related documents consistent with
Commission direction and the adopted budget. The substance of these items remains materially
the same as previously briefed to the Commission; the delegation simply streamlines approval to
meet external deadlines. Final ratification authority remains with the full Commission.

Administrative Office Nate Miley, Regular Jack Balch, Regular Ralph Johnson, Chair Sblend Sblendorio, Regular

David Haubert, Regular John Marchand, Regular  Mariellen Faria, Regular Bob Woerner, Alternate

53

Lena Tam, Alternate Sherry Hu Peter Rosen, Alternate



Alameda LAFCO
October 20,, 2025 Meeting
Agenda Item No. 5

Delegated Scope (transition implementation only):

= Health Benefits: Select benefit plans, employer/employee contribution structure, and
authorize related enrollment and underwriting documents

= Retirement Plan Administration: Select between ACERA or CalPERS, and authorize
required application and filings, with the formal resolutions subject to Commission
ratification.

= Payroll/HR Implementation: Approve payroll provider setup, benefit/pay codes, and
related onboarding forms consistent with the adopted chart of accounts and personnel
actions.

= Standard-Form Agreements/MOU: Execute routine contracts or MOUs necessary to
implement the transition that conform to approved templates and legal review, subject to
ratification by the full Commission.

= Policy/Handoffs: Approve non-substantive or conforming edits to
personnel/administrative policies required by carriers or providers to effectuate
enrollments and operations.

Guardrails and Reporting:

* Budget and Compliance: No action may exceed line-item appropriations or the overall
adopted budget without returning to the full Commission.

* Term/Termination: Delegation sunsets January 15, 2026 or upon Commission action.

* Transparency: Actions taken will be summarized in writing and placed on the next regular
agenda for ratification, with underlying agreements available to Commissioners.

Alternatives for Action
The following alternatives are available to the Commission:

Alternative One (Recommended):
Delegate limited transition-plan authority to the Ad Hoc Selection Committee; authorize the Executive

Officer, in-consultation with legal counsel, to execute documents approved by the Committee; require
reporting/ratification as the next regular meeting; and set a subset of January 15, 2026.

Alternative Two:

Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff for additional
information as needed.

2|Page

54



Alameda LAFCO
October 20,, 2025 Meeting
Agenda Item No. 5

Alternative Three:

Take no action.

Recommendation
It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.

Procedures
This item has been placed on Alameda LAFCO’s agenda as part of the business calendar. The

following procedures are recommended in consideration of this item:

1. Receive verbal presentation from staff unless waived.
2. Invite any comments from the public.
3. Provide feedback on the item as needed.

Attachment: none

3|Page

55



	Attachment 6 SDRMA Bylaws.pdf
	BYLAWS
	ARTICLE I
	1. Eligibility
	2. Participating Member
	3. Successor Member Entity
	4. Annual Membership Meeting
	ARTICLE II
	ARTICLE III
	2. Board Committees
	3. Chief Executive Officer
	4. Execution of Contracts
	5. Resignation
	ARTICLE IV
	TREASURER AND AUDITOR
	1. Treasurer
	2. Auditor
	ARTICLE V
	ARTICLE VI
	1. Implementation of Joint Protection Programs
	2. Method of Calculating Contributions
	ARTICLE VII
	1. Accounts and Records
	2. Audit
	3. Annual Budget
	4. Risk Sharing
	5. Distribution of Net Position
	6. Assessments
	7. Fiscal Year
	8. Agency Funds; No Loans
	9. Grants and Donations
	1. Withdrawal from Programs
	2. Involuntary Termination
	3. Notification; Hearing, Obligations Upon Involuntary Termination
	4. Voluntary Withdrawal from Agreement
	5. Payment Upon Termination of Membership
	6. Continued Liability
	ARTICLE IX
	1. After having made proper provision for the winding up of the affairs of the Authority and each of the Programs operated by the Authority, the Authority shall distribute the net assets of the Authority as follows:
	2. The Board of Directors is also vested with the power to terminate individual Programs operated by the Authority without terminating the Agreement or terminating the Authority. In the event of termination of a Program operated by the Authority, said...
	3. In lieu of terminating this Agreement, the Board, with the written consent of two-thirds of the existing Members, may elect to assign and transfer all of the Authority’s rights, assets, claims, liabilities and obligations to a successor joint power...
	ARTICLE X
	1. Board of Directors; Alliance Executive Council
	ARTICLE XI
	ARTICLE XII
	AYES:   7 – Seifert-Raffelson, Swan, Claypool, Scheafer, Unruh, Wright, Housley
	Attested:
	Brian Kelley, ARM, Chief Executive Officer

	Attachment 3 6th Amended JPA - effective October 2 2007 V3.pdf
	SDRMA_ Sixth Amended JPA Final last page.pdf
	By:________________________________





